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Introduction 
  
 

As the number and diversity of Studio Schools or University Technical 
Colleges for 14 to 18 year olds increases, one role of the modern local 
authority is to ensure that parents and pupils have the information that 
they need to make informed choices about the best educational 
provision to meet their current and future needs.  
 
Young people in Year 9 have the opportunity to continue in their current 
provision or transfer to a University Technical College (UTC) or Studio 
School to start Year 10 in September 2017.  Oxfordshire County Council 
is responsible for co-ordinating the applications process for these 

providers for entry in September 2017. Only a relatively small number of young people will 
want to benefit from one of these opportunities.   
 
On National Offer Day, for transfer to Studio Schools or UTCs in September 2016, we dealt 
with 150 applications from Oxfordshire residents and 134 (nearly 89%) were offered their 
first preference. Only 16 young people whose parents had applied on time and who live in 
Oxfordshire were not offered a preferred establishment.  
 
Most applications are now made online. Applying in this way offers the benefits of being 
able to start, save, change and complete your application at any time right up to the closing 
date of 31 October 2016.  Those who apply online will also be able to respond online to the 
offer after 1 March 2017. 
 
I would advise you to read the prospectuses and admissions arrangements and also to read 
our Home to School Transport Policy.  It may also be possible to visit University Technical 
Colleges or Studio Schools. 
 
Most importantly, I would also advise you to apply on time.  Applying on time is likely to 
maximise the chance of your child being offered a place your preferred Studio School or 
University Technical College. This means you need to submit your application by 31 
October 2016. 
 
You can apply online at: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions 
 
 
 
Jim Leivers 
Director for Children’s Services 
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Key Dates 
 

 
September 2016 

 
“Further Steps” booklet available for viewing online 
 

 
8 September 2016 

 
Online and paper applications accepted from this date; 
“Further Steps” information available on request from the LA 
 

 
31 October 2016 
 

 
National closing date for on-time applications 
 

 
16 November 2016 

 
Last date for confirmation of change of address and for late app-
lications or changes of preference with extenuating circumstances 
to be considered as on-time  
 

 
21 November 2016 

 
LA to send application data to other LAs for Studio Schools or 
UTCs in that LA’s area  
 

 
12 December 2016 

 
LA to send application data to Studio Schools or UTCs in 
Oxfordshire by this date 
 

 
16 January 2017 

 
Last date for return of data to LA from Studio Schools or UTCs in 
Oxfordshire 
 

 
1 March 2017 

 
Offer letters sent by second class post and emails sent to 
those who applied online 
 

 
21 March 2017 

 
The last date for responding to an offer and for placing a young 
person’s name on a Continued Interest (Waiting) list in response to 
offers made on 1 March; also last date for late applications and 
changes of preference to be considered in the second round of the 
allocation process 
 

 
29 March 2017 

 
Start to consider late applications, changes of preference and 
Continuing Interest requests 
 

 
8 May 2017 

 
Offer letters sent for second round of the allocation process.  
Information is not sent by email 
 

 
23 May 2017 

 
Respond to offers made on 8 May; apply for Continued Interest 
(Waiting) list 
 

 
September 2017 

 
Start of academic year for above phases 
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Section 1 – Application Process 
  
Parents of young people born between 1 September 2002 and 31 August 2003 
(inclusive) are able to apply for places for their children in Studio Schools or 
University Technical Colleges (UTCs).  
 
Parents do not need to do anything if they wish their children to continue at their 
current secondary school. 
 
The closing date for on time applications is 31 October 2016. 
 
 

Definition of a parent 
 
Section 576 of the Education Act 1996 defines a 'parent' as: 
 

• all natural parents, whether they are married or not;  
• any person who, although not a natural parent, has parental responsibility for a child 

or young person;  
• any person who, although not a natural parent, has care of a child or young person 

(having care of a child or young person means that a person with whom the child 
lives and who looks after the child, irrespective of what their relationship is with the 
child, is considered to be a parent in education law). 

 
Having parental responsibility means assuming all the rights, duties, powers, responsibilities 
and authority that a parent of a child has by law. People other than a child's natural parents 
can acquire parental responsibility through: 
 

• being granted a residence order; 
• being appointed a guardian; 
• being named in an emergency protection order (although parental responsibility in 

such a case is limited to taking reasonable steps to safeguard or promote the child's 
welfare); 

• adopting a child (in the case of step-parents) in agreement with the child's mother 
(and other parent if that person also has parental responsibility for the child) or as the 
result of a court order.  

 
Where a child's parents are not married to each other, the child's father can gain parental 
responsibility by: 
 

• registering the child's birth jointly with the mother; 
• through a 'parental responsibility agreement' between him and the child's mother; 
• as the result of a court order.  

 
In addition, a local authority can acquire parental responsibility if it is named in the care 
order for a child. 
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Apply Online 
 
Parents can apply online for a place for their child at a Studio School or University Technical 
Colleges at: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions.  
 
Applying online is the main means of application.  
 
If parents are unable or do not wish to apply online they can apply on paper using the 
Common Application Form.  A copy of this form is available online as well as from County 
Hall. 
 
 

Applying 
 
When applying for a place at a Studio School or University Technical College, a parent 
needs to use one method only. Applying both online and on paper may delay the 
processing of your application. 
 
A parent can list up to 3 Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges on the application 
form.  These should be listed in order of preference and, in order to maximise the chance of 
obtaining the preferred Studio School or University Technical College, it is very important to 
apply on time, i.e. by 31 October 2016. 
 
Before deciding which Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges to list parents are 
advised to read through the information available online  
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions. 
and in the “Further Steps” booklet and check Studio Schools’ or University Technical 
Colleges’ websites and prospectuses.  It may also be possible to visit a Studio School or 
University Technical College. 
 
There are two Studio Schools and one University Technical College in Oxfordshire.  All 
three establishments are part of the coordinated admissions scheme for entry to Year 10 in 
September 2017. 
 
 

Applying to Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges outside Oxfordshire 
 
Parents should note that not all University Technical Colleges and Studio Schools in 
England are part of the coordinated admission process for their local authority.  
 
Any parents who live in Oxfordshire and want to apply for a place for their child at a Studio 
School or University Technical College in a different local authority, are advised to apply via 
Oxfordshire Admissions Authority.  As with applications made for Studio Schools or 
University Technical Colleges within Oxfordshire it is best to apply online. 
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Supplementary Form 
 
If a Studio School or University Technical College requests the submission of a 
supplementary form it is important to remember that submitting such a form does not 
amount to an application – a parent still needs to apply online or on paper.  However, 
if a Studio School or University Technical College uses a supplementary form, it is in an 
applicant’s interests to complete and return it so that the application is considered under the 
correct criterion. 
 
 

Equal Preference System 
 
In England Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges that are part of coordinated 
admission arrangements use an “Equal Preference System”. This was introduced to prevent 
admission authorities giving a higher priority to the group of parents who make a particular 
Studio School or University Technical College their first preference. Every Studio School or 
University Technical College listed on the Common Application Form as a preference is 
treated as a separate application, each one is equal, and the priority for admission is 
established using the admission rules for the relevant Studio School or University Technical 
College. Once this information is available the preferences are then considered by the Local 
Authority acting as the “clearing house”. If at this stage it was theoretically possible to offer a 
place at all three of the Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges listed the one 
offered would be the one listed as the highest preference.  
 
It is important to understand the admission rules for a particular Studio School or University 
Technical College in order to assess the likelihood of being able to obtain a place for a 
young person. If a parent is unable to gain a place for their child at one of the Studio 
Schools or University Technical Colleges listed on the application it will be because there 
were other young people who had a higher priority for a place under the admission rules. 
 
 

If a preference cannot be offered 
 
If a place cannot be offered at any of the Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges 
listed, the Local Authority will not offer an alternative placement.  The letter will advise that 
the young person should remain at their current secondary school.  However, a parent may 
place the young person’s name on the Continued Interest (waiting) list for each of the 
relevant Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges and/or appeal for a place through 
the admission appeal process. 
 
 

Responding to an Offer 
 
A response form will be sent with the letter offering a place.  The form should be completed 
and then returned to Oxfordshire Admissions Authority by 21 March 2017.  
 
If the application has been made online, parents may respond online rather than returning 
the paper form. 
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If a response is not received by Oxfordshire Admissions Authority by 21 March 2017 or a 
parent rejects the offer of a place or does not inform the Authority, the offered place may be 
offered to another applicant in the second or later allocation round. 
 
The re-allocation process will begin on 29 March 2017. 
 
 

Late applications 
 
Parents are strongly advised to make sure that applications are submitted by the 
closing date of 31 October 2016. If an application is received after this date it will be 
classed as a late application unless there are genuine extenuating reasons.  
 
If you miss the deadline, and have one or more genuine extenuating reasons for 
missing it, the deadline to submit extenuating reasons with your application is 16 
November 2016. After this date late applications will, as a matter of course, be considered 
as late.  
 
Given that any late application is likely to be less successful in obtaining a place at a 
preferred Studio School or University Technical College, any parent submitting a Common 
Application after the deadline for on time late application. 
 
Examples of extenuating circumstances are: 
 

• an administrative error by the LA is responsible for the application being late; 
• a sudden illness of a close family member prevents a parent from submitting the 

application on time; 
• the death of a close family member (young person’s sibling, parent, grandparent) 

which prevented the parent/carer from submitting the application on time. 
 
It is not possible to apply online after 31 October 2016.  
 
Late applications must be made on the paper Common Application Form. 
 
 

Leaflet - “What Happens Next?”  
 
Everyone who applies for a transfer to any Studio School or University Technical College for 
their child will be sent a leaflet called “What Happens Next?” with the letter. This leaflet 
explains how to: 
 

• respond to the offer a place; 
• place a young person’s name on one or more Continued Interest lists; 
• lodge an appeal. 
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What happens after the first offer of places on 1 March 2017? 
 
Parents offered a place at a first preference Studio School or University Technical College 
should ensure that they respond to the offer by 21 March 2017. If no response is received 
the place could be offered to another young person. 
 
The deadline for returning the Continued Interest form is 21 March 2017.  
 
Parents might decide that they no longer want their child to attend the Studio School or 
University Technical College offered even though it is listed as a first preference. If this is 
the case parents are able to change their preferences. Parents are advised to read the 
Local Authority’s policy on changes of preference before making a decision of this kind. 
 
 

Second Allocation (late) Round from 29 March to 8 May 2017 
 
After 21 March 2017 (the deadline for responses from the first allocation on 1 March 2017), 
the responses are collated and any vacancies that may have arisen, because of places 
being declined, are available to be re-offered to applicants on 8 May 2017. 
 
The following groups of young people are all considered together in the second allocation 
and in all cases they are prioritised according to each Studio School or University Technical 
College’s published admissions rules: 
 

• late applicants whose applications were submitted after 31 October 2016 but by 21 
March 2017; and 

• young people on the Continued Interest list who could not be offered a place on 1 
March 2017 whose parents want them to be re-considered for a place, should one 
become available, and whose names are on the Continued Interest list for the relevant 
Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges; and 

• applicants classed as “change of preference”, where a place was offered at a Studio 
Schools or University Technical Colleges on 1 March but the parent has changed their 
preference(s) or added a new preference or preferences by 21 March 2017. 

 
On 8 May 2017, letters are sent regarding young people who can be offered a place at a 
Studio School or University Technical College or who can be offered a different place to the 
one offered on 1 March 2017.  Letters are not sent regarding young people whose offer 
has not been changed. 
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Looked After and Previously Looked After Children 
 
Looked After Children 
 
A 'looked after child' is a child who is: 
 

(a) in the care of a local authority; or  
(b) being provided with accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social 

services functions at the time of making an application to a Studio School or 
University Technical College (see the definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 
1989). 

 
 
Previously looked after children 
 
The School Admissions Code 2012 introduced a requirement for all admission authorities to 
broaden the existing priority for 'looked after children' or children in care (defined in section 
22 of the Children Act 1989) to also include 'previously looked after' children. Children who 
were 'previously looked after' were defined for admissions purposes as those who 
immediately after being in care became subject to an adoption, residence, or special 
guardianship order. 
 
A revised School Admissions Code came into force on 19 December 2014 and this states 
that previously looked children include those who were adopted under the Adoption Act 
1976 (see section 12 adoption orders) and not simply those children who were adopted 
under the Adoption and Children Act 2002 (see section 46 adoption orders). In addition 
residence orders have now been replaced by child arrangements orders. Those who 
previously received a residence order are now deemed to have a child arrangement order. 
 
If applying on behalf of a “previously looked after” child the parent will need to provide the 
following evidence: 
 

• an adoption order under section 46 of the Adoption and Children Act 2002; or 
• an adoption order under the Adoption Act 1976; or 
• a child arrangements order; or 
• a residence order settling the arrangements to be made as to the person with whom 

the child is to live under section 8 of the Children Act 1989; or 
• a special guardianship order appointing one or more individuals to be a child's 

special guardian(s), under section 14A of the Children Act 1989. 
 
It is important that the evidence is provided since without it there is no basis for considering 
a young person as being “Previously Looked After”. Therefore failing to provide the 
necessary evidence could have a significant impact on whether a place is offered at the 
Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges listed as the first preference. 
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Addresses 
 

Home address 
 
The address on the application should be the young person’s address at the time of 
application.  This is the address at which the young person spends the majority of term-
time school nights (Sunday night to Thursday night).  
 
The “time of application” is the entire time period from the point when applications 
can be made in September 2016 until National Offer Day on 1 March 2017. 
 
Sometimes an application is made based on an address at the time the application is written 
and the address then changes after the application has been submitted.  It is important to 
tell the Local Authority about changes of address so that places can be offered fairly and so 
notification can be sent by post to the correct home address.   
 
If the application address is found to have subsequently changed after the application was 
submitted and this information could have been provided when the application was first 
made or before places were offered, the Local Authority will consider the application to have 
been made on the basis of a fraudulent or intentionally misleading address.  This will 
normally result in the offer of a Studio School or University Technical College place being 
withdrawn (see Fraudulent Applications). 
 
If an application is made on the basis of a new address or intention to move to an area, 
information about the new address must be provided in order for it to be taken into account.   
 
 

Change of address 
 
Changes of address which occur after 31 October 2016 can be taken into account if proof 
of this change is provided no later than 16 November 2016 (see below).  
 
To confirm the new address we need one of the following: 
 

• a solicitor's letter advising contracts have been exchanged (if the property is being 
purchased); or 

• a copy of a tenancy agreement (if the property is to be rented) but if this tenancy 
agreement comes to an end before September 2017 we may not accept the 
address for admissions purposes; or 

• a copy of the Council Tax Bill showing the same name(s) on the application for a 
Studio School or University Technical College (CAF); or 

• a letter from a new employer (e.g. University) where accommodation is being 
provided by them and is tied to the new post/job giving details of this new address; or 

• new Quarter information if this is an accompanied military posting; or 
• an Assignment Order if this is an accompanied military posting but details of the 

new quarter have not yet been given to the family. In this case the base address will 
be used for admissions purposes. 
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Please note that a parent may also be asked to provide proof of address from 
correspondence they have received from HM Revenue & Customs, Child Benefit 
Division or Tax Credits Division.  
 
Any correspondence from HM Revenue & Customs, Child Benefit Division or Tax 
Credits Division must pre-date the application made by the parent. 
 
 

Multiple addresses 
 
Where young people spend time with parents at more than one address then the address 
given on the form should be the one that they live at (i.e. sleep at) for the majority of term-
time school nights (Sunday night to Thursday night). 
 
If young people spend time equally at different addresses then the address used for 
admissions purposes will be the one registered for Child Benefit. We will request proof of 
the registered address, which must pre-date the application. 
 
Parents who are unable to agree on the Studio Schools or University Technical 
Colleges to be listed as preferences 
 
If parents cannot agree on the Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges to list on the 
CAF and submit separate applications the Local Authority will only consider the application 
made by the parent who receives Child Benefit for that young person. 
 
If a parent is unhappy with this decision they may wish to seek an order from the Court. 
 
 

Fraudulent Applications 
 
If a place has been obtained on the basis of a fraudulent or intentionally misleading 
application (for example, a false claim to residence in a designated/ catchment area) and 
this results in the denial of a place to a young person with a higher priority for that place, the 
admission authority for the Studio School or University Technical College may withdraw the 
offer of that place.  This follows the guidance in paragraphs 2.12 and 2.13 of the School 
Admissions Code 2014 published by the Department for Education: 
 
 

“[2.12] An admission authority must not withdraw an offer unless it has been offered in 
error, a parent has not responded within a reasonable period of time, or it is established that 
the offer was obtained through a fraudulent or intentionally misleading application. Where 
the parent has not responded to the offer, the admission authority must give the parent a 
further opportunity to respond and explain that the offer may be withdrawn if they do not. 
Where an offer is withdrawn on the basis of misleading information, the application must be 
considered afresh, and a right of appeal offered if an offer is refused. 
 
[2.13] A school must not withdraw a place once a child has started at the school, except 
where that place was fraudulently obtained. In deciding whether to withdraw the place, the 
length of time that the child has been at the school must be taken into account. For 
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example, it might be considered appropriate to withdraw the place if the child has been at 
the school for less than one term.” 
 
 

Parents who are unable to agree on the schools to be listed as preferences 
 
If parents cannot agree on the Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges to list on the 
application and submit separate applications the Local Authority will only consider the 
application made by the parent who receives Child Benefit for that young person. 
 
If a parent is unhappy with this decision they may wish to seek an order from the Court. 
 
 

Continued Interest (Waiting) lists 
 
In Oxfordshire, waiting lists for young people who could not be offered a place at a Studio 
School or University Technical College and whose parents want them to continue to be 
considered, should a place become available, are called Continued Interest (CI) lists. 
 
Please note that young people are listed in order of the published admissions criteria 
for that school (not in order of how long they have been on the list). 
 
A parent can add their child’s name to the Continued Interest list for a maximum of three 
Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges.  The establishments concerned should be 
ones that have already been requested at which a place could not be made available. 
 
A parent cannot add their child’s name to a Continued Interest list for a Studio School or 
University Technical College at which no place has previously been sought. In a case of this 
kind the requested establishment will first need to consider whether a place can be offered. 
If a place cannot be offered the parent can then add their child’s name to the Continued 
Interest list subject to the maximum limit of three establishments. 
 
Once a parent adds their child’s name to the Continued Interest list for a Studio School or 
University Technical College that could not be offered, the parent is regarded as having 
higher preference for that school than the school previously offered. Therefore, if a place 
becomes available and is offered to that child the place at the Studio School or University 
Technical College (if any) originally offered will be withdrawn. 
 
A young person cannot be added to the Continued Interest list of a Studio School or 
University Technical College that is lower on their parent’s list of preferences than the 
school they were offered. However, a parent can change the order of preferences (see 
below), so that a new decision can be made as to whether a place can be offered at that 
establishment. After a parent has been notified of the decision and a place cannot be 
offered it is then possible to add the young person’s name to the Continued Interest list for 
that Studio School or University Technical College. 
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Example 1 
 
A young person cannot be added to the Continued Interest list for a Studio School or 
University Technical College which a parent listed as third preference if they were offered a 
place at the one listed as second preference. In this example, if a parent wanted the young 
person to be considered for a place at the Studio School or University Technical College 
originally requested as third preference, then this preference would need to be moved up 
the list to become the second preference and the place offered at the one originally 
requested as a second preference would need to be moved down the list to become the 
third preference. The new second preference would then be classed as a changed 
preference. 
 
Late applicants and those who have a changed preference will be considered alongside, 
and not after, the young people on the Continued Interest list if any places become 
available.  It is therefore possible, during the late allocation round, for a place to be allocated 
to a late applicant or to a young person whose parent has changed their preference, rather 
than to a young person on the Continued Interest list. Essentially any available place at a 
Studio School or University Technical College would be offered to the young person with the 
highest priority for a place under the admissions criteria for that establishment with late 
applicants, those classed as “changed preference” and those on the Continued Interest list 
considered as one group of active applicants. 
 
In cases where the young person at the top of the Continued Interest list is eligible to be 
given a place that has become available at a preferred establishment, the admissions 
authority will automatically allocate a place at that school. The place at the school previously 
offered will be withdrawn so that it can be offered to another young person. An applicant 
cannot simultaneously hold the offer of a place at more than one Studio School or University 
Technical College. 
 
Example 2 
 
A young person’s name has been added to the Continued Interest lists for the Studio 
Schools/University Technical Colleges which were listed as first and second preferences but 
a place has been offered at the one listed as a third preference. A place becomes available 
at the first preference establishment and is offered. The place at the third preference 
establishment is taken away and offered to another young person. The young person is also 
automatically removed from the Continued Interest list for the second preference 
establishment because this is listed as a lower preference than the place offered. 
 
Eligibility for free home to school transport is based on the Home to School Transport 
Policy. If a young person is offered free transport to a Studio School or University Technical 
College originally offered and is later offered a place from the Continued Interest list at an 
alternative, they will not automatically qualify for free home to school transport to the new 
establishment. 
 
A young person can move up or down a Continued Interest list, depending on whether other 
children join it or are removed from it. 
 
Parents are advised to check the relevant websites for details of how Continued Interest list 
will operate or the school’s published admissions rules (see Section 2 below). 
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Changes of Preference 
 
A change of preference is the addition of a Studio School or University Technical College 
that was not originally requested to the list of preferences, or the re-ordering of Studio 
Schools or University Technical Colleges on the list which were originally requested. A 
maximum of three new Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges can be added to an 
application at any one time. Changes of preference will be considered by the admission 
authority at the next available opportunity. 
 
A change of preference requested after National Offer Day (1 March), will be considered 
alongside late applicants and those applicants who were originally considered for that 
Studio School or University Technical College, but whose parents were unsuccessful in 
obtaining a place for their child and asked for their children’s names to be added to the 
Continued Interest list. These three groups of young people form the list of “late applicants”. 
 
A change of preference which is made after 21 March 2017 is too late to be considered as 
a “late application”. It will be determined as soon as possible after the closing date for 
responses to offers made in the “late process” (23 May 2017). 
 
Once a change of preference has been considered, and notification has been made in 
writing, it is possible to add a young person’s name to the Continued Interest list for that 
Studio School or University Technical College if a place cannot be offered, as long as this 
will not exceed the limit of a maximum of three Continued Interest lists. 
 
If a place can be offered at a Studio School or University Technical College which has been 
added as a change of preference and this Studio School or University Technical College is 
listed as a higher preference than the Studio School or University Technical College offered, 
the place originally offered will be taken away and offered to another young person. It is not 
possible to simultaneously hold an offer of a place at more than one Studio School or 
University Technical College. 
 
If a place is offered at a Studio School or University Technical College, the young person’s 
name will be automatically removed from the Continued Interest lists for any Studio Schools 
or University Technical Colleges which are lower down on the list than the Studio School or 
University Technical College which has been offered. 
 
 

Admission appeals 
 
There is statutory right of appeal for any Studio School or University Technical College listed 
on the application if a place was not offered. The deadline for returning the appeal form for 
letters sent on 1 March 2017 is 29 March 2017. 
 
Anyone who has an application for a place at a Studio School or University Technical 
College turned down has the right to appeal to an Independent Appeal Panel.   

A decision by an appeal panel on whether or not to offer a Studio School or University 
Technical College place is binding on the relevant admissions authority. 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
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Acceptance of a place at a Studio School or University Technical College does not affect a 
parent’s right to appeal for a place for their child at another Studio School or University 
Technical College.  

Further information about the appeals process can be found 
at: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/schoolappeals 
 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/schoolappeals
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Section 2 – Admission Arrangements 
 

Studio Schools/University Technical Colleges in Oxfordshire 
 

There are two Studio Schools and one University Technical College in Oxfordshire.  These 
are listed in the table below. 

 
 

Establishment 
 

 

Address 
Telephone  
Oxfordshire web details 

 

Published 
Admission 
Number 
 

 

Bicester Technology 
Studio 

 

Queens Avenue, Bicester, OX26 2NS 
01869 203012 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/school/4012 
 

 

50 

 

Space Studio Banbury 
 

 

Ruskin Road, Banbury, OX16 9HY 
01295 257942 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/school/4006 
 

 

75 

 

UTC Oxfordshire 
 

Greenwood Way, Didcot, OX11 6BZ 
01235 391587 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/school/4008 
 

 

90 

 
Admissions arrangements and oversubscription rules will be available on the websites for 
each Studio School or University Technical College and are also available online under 
‘Future admission policy’ using the links above.  Details of how places have been offered 
previously at Space Studio Banbury and UTC Oxfordshire are also available online using 
the links above.  

 
  

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/school/4006
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/school/4008
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Studio Schools/University Technical Colleges in surrounding areas  
 
Buckinghamshire 
 
Buckinghamshire UTC 
Oxford Road, Aylesbury, HP21 8PB 
Tel: 01296 388688 
Details online: www.buckinghamshireutc.co.uk 
 
 
Reading Borough 
 
UTC - Reading 
Crescent Road, Reading, RG1 5RQ 
Tel: 0118 938 1020 
Details online: www.utcreading.co.uk 
 
 
Northamptonshire 
 
Daventry UTC 
Ashby Road, Daventry, NN11 0QE 
Tel: 01327 877684 
Details online: www.daventryutc.com 
 
Silverstone UTC 
Silverstone Circuit, Towcester, NN12 8TL 
Tel: 01327 855010 
Details online: www.utc-silverstone.co.uk 
 
 
Swindon Town 
 
UTC - Swindon 
Bristol Street, Swindon, SN1 5ET 
Tel: 01793 207920 
Details online: www.utcswindon.co.uk 
 
 
Wiltshire 
 
South Wiltshire UTC 
Wilton Road, Salisbury, SP2 7HR 
Tel: 01722 444000 
Details online: www.wiltshire-utc.co.uk 

 
  

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
http://www.buckinghamshireutc.co.uk/
http://www.utcreading.co.uk/
http://www.daventryutc.com/
http://www.utc-silverstone.co.uk/
http://www.utcswindon.co.uk/
http://www.wiltshire-utc.co.uk/
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Section 3 – Miscellaneous 
 
Travel to Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges  
 
It is advisable for parents to consider how their child will travel to any Studio School or 
University Technical College listed on the application. 
 
Oxfordshire County Council will not generally accept responsibility for the provision or cost 
of travel to a Studio School or University Technical College if there is a nearer available 
school or establishment. 
 
The Home to school Transport Policy can be found at: 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/schooltransport 
 
 
 

Fair Access Protocol 
 
The School Admissions Code requires every local authority to have in place a Fair Access 
Protocol. The Fair Access Protocol for Oxfordshire applies to all state funded mainstream 
schools in Oxfordshire and is consistent with the requirements set out in paragraphs 3.9 to 
3.15 of the Schools Admissions Code 2014, the non-statutory guidance published by the 
Department of Education in November 2012, the Education (Pupil Registration) (England) 
Regulations 2006 and the School  Standards and Framework Act 1998.  

The Schools Admissions Code 2014 requires all admission authorities of state funded 
mainstream schools to participate in the Fair Access Protocol in order to ensure that 
unplaced children are allocated a place quickly. There is no duty for local authorities or 
admission authorities to comply with parental preference when allocating places through the 
Fair Access Protocol.  

The purpose of the Fair Access Protocol is to ensure that outside the normal admissions 
round unplaced children, especially the most vulnerable, are found and offered a place 
quickly, so that the amount of time any child is out of Studio Schools or University Technical 
Colleges is kept to the minimum.  

The published guidance from the Department of Education sets out a clear expectation from 
the Secretary of State that all state funded mainstream schools and local authorities should 
work together to identify a place for those children who have had difficulty finding one. This 
guidance also states that all schools are expected to respond to requests by local 
authorities to admit a child under fair access protocols within seven calendar days.  
 
The process that local authorities and academies need to follow when a request is made to 
the Secretary of State to direct an academy to admit a named child will mirror, as closely as 
possible, the timing set out in School  Admissions Code.  
 
When reviewing a request to direct admission the Education Funding Agency will act on 
behalf of the Secretary of State to consider whether due process has been followed in 
applying the provisions of the Fair Access Protocol 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/schooltransport
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Principles 
 
The Fair Access Protocol is binding on all state funded mainstream schools in Oxfordshire.  
However, the arrangements regarding the admission of students above the published 
admission number do not apply to Meadowbrook College, Oxfordshire’s Pupil Referral Unit.  
When making placements the Fair Access Panels will take into account any special 
circumstances, including possible transport costs.  
 
There is no duty to comply with parental preference when allocating places through the 
Protocol but it is expected that the wishes of a child’s parents will be taken into account.  
 
When seeking to place a child under the Protocol, all schools will be treated in a fair, 
equitable and consistent manner.  
 
The Fair Access Protocol will not be used as a means to circumvent the normal in-year 
admissions process. A parent can apply for a place as an in-year admission at any point 
and is entitled to an appeal if a place cannot be made available.  
 
An application to the Secretary of State to direct a child’s admission to a particular school 
will only be requested as a last resort.  

 
While a child is on roll at a school the school concerned is responsible for the child’s 
educational provision.  
 
Any child without a school place is the responsibility of the Local Authority up until the point 
at which they are taken on roll at a school.  
 
There will be an annual review of the Protocol.  
 
The Fair Access Protocol is not applicable to admissions made through the normal 
admissions round.  
 
The Fair Access Protocol will not be used to require a school  to automatically admit another 
child with challenging behaviour in the place of a child excluded from that school. 
 
 
Children covered by the Protocol  
 
The Fair Access Protocol can be used for the placement of children who fall within the 
following categories:  
 

• children from the criminal justice system or Pupil Referral Units who  
  need to be reintegrated into mainstream education;  

• children who have been out of education for two months or more;  
• children of Gypsies, Roma, Travellers, refugees and asylum seekers;  
• children who are homeless;  
• children with unsupportive family backgrounds for whom a place has not been 

sought;  
• children who are carers;  

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
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• children with special educational needs, disabilities or medical conditions (but without 
a statement);  

• permanently excluded children, including those whose parents have successfully 
appealed against exclusion, but where the independent appeal panel has decided 
that the pupil should not be reinstated;  

• children who are at serious risk of permanent exclusion;  
• those children whose parents have been unable to find them a place after moving to 

the area, because of a shortage of places;  
• those children who have been refused a place at a school  because they are believed 

by the school concerned to be challenging.  
 
 
Monitoring of the Protocol  
 
The Admissions and Transport Services Manager (assisted by the Exclusion & 
Reintegration Officers) monitors placements under the Protocol and the operation of the 
Fair Access Panels.  
 
 
Publication and Review  
 
The Fair Access Protocol will be published on the admissions page of the Oxfordshire public 
website and forms part of the admission arrangements for all state funded schools in 
Oxfordshire.  
 
Looked after children, previously looked after children, children with an Education 
Health and Care Plan and children with a Statement of Special Educational Needs 
naming a Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges   
 
Requests for places for looked after children, previously looked after children, children with 
an Education Health and Care Plan/Statement of Special Educational Needs naming a 
Studio Schools or University Technical Colleges, will not be referred to the Fair Access 
Panels.  
 
In accordance with legal requirements children who have an Education Health and Care 
Plan that names the school will be admitted to that school. In addition those children who 
have a Statement of Special Educational Needs that names a particular school in Part 4 of 
that Statement will also be admitted to that school. 
 
 

Guidance on educational provision for young people from overseas 
 

Admission authorities must treat applications for young people from overseas in accordance 
with European Union law or Home Office rules for non-European Economic Area nationals. 
In most cases, young people arriving from overseas have the right to attend state-funded 
schools in England. 

However, the following young people are not entitled to a state education in England: 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
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• young people from non-European Economic Area (EEA) countries who are here as 
short-term visitors - these are young people who live abroad but have been admitted 
to the UK for a short visit (for example as tourists or to visit relatives), and not to 
study; 

• young people from non-EEA countries who have permission to study in the UK - 
these young people are allowed to study in England on the basis that they attend an 
independent, fee-paying school. 
 

If a Studio School, University Technical College or the Local Authority finds young people 
belonging to either of these categories are attending a state-funded school, they will not 
deny them a place. However, the Home Office’s referrals team will be alerted so that they 
can investigate further. 

 
If the Home Office finds that a young person is not entitled to state-funded education, it is up 
to the Home Office to take any further action they consider appropriate.  A young person 
should not be denied a place on the basis of the Home Office’s findings. 

 
The email address for the Home Office referrals team is: 
school.referrals@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk 
 

 
Young people with Education, Health and Care Plans 
 
If a parent has a child who has an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) they should 
raise the question of a placement at a Studio School or University Technical College at the 
child’s annual review, prior to the year of application.  Any queries should be directed to the 
relevant SEN officer. 
 
 

Private Fostering 

There is a legal requirement to notify the Local Authority of private fostering arrangements. 

A privately fostered child is a child under 16 years of age (or 18 years of age if disabled) 
who lives away from their birth parents for longer than 28 days with a person who is not: 
 

• a parent of the child; 
• someone who has parental responsibility for the child; 
• a close relative of the child. 

The Children Act 1989 (Section 105) defines a relative as a grandparent, brother, sister 
uncle or aunt (whether of the full blood or half blood or by affinity) or step parent (Section 
10(5) a) refers to a step parent being someone who is, or has been, a party to a marriage). 

Those who need to notify Oxfordshire County Council of a private fostering arrangement 
should contact: 

 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
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Katie Holmes 
Senior Practitioner 
Family Placement Team City 
County Hall 
New Road 
Oxford 
OX1 1ND 

Tel: 01865 323126 
Email: katie.holmes@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

Uniform Policies for Studio Schools / University Technical Colleges  

Information on uniform policies will be available from individual establishments. 

 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions
mailto:katie.holmes@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Useful Contact Details 
School Organisation & Planning (Admissions Team) 

Children, Education & Families Directorate 
County Hall 
New Road 

Oxford 
OX1 1ND 

 
  01865 815175 

Email: admissions.schools@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Apply online: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/upperadmissions 
 

Apply by: 31 October 2016  
National Offer Day: 1 March 2017 
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Useful Contact Details 
Buckinghamshire Admissions Authority 
 01296 383250 
www.buckscc.gov.uk/admissions 
 

Gloucestershire Admissions Authority 
 01452 425173 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/schooladmissions 

 
Northamptonshire Admissions Authority 
 0300 126 1000 
www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/admissions 
 

Reading Admissions Authority 
 0118 937 3777  
www.reading.gov.uk/schools 

 
Swindon Admissions Authority 
 01793 445500 
www.swindon.gov.uk/schoolplaces 

Warwickshire Admissions Authority 
 01926 414143 
www.warwickshire.gov.uk/admissions 
 

West Berkshire Admissions Authority 
 01635 519780 
info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articlei
d=30033 

 
Wiltshire Admissions Authority 
 01225 713010 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/schooladmissions 
 

Wokingham Admissions Authority 
 0118 974 6143 
www.wokingham.gov.uk/admissions/ 

 
Swindon Admissions Authority 
 01793 445500 
 

http://www.buckscc.gov.uk/admissions
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/schooladmissions
http://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/admissions
http://www.reading.gov.uk/schools
http://www.swindon.gov.uk/schoolplaces
http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/admissions
http://www.info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=30033
http://www.info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=30033
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/schooladmissions
http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/admissions/
http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/admissions/
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